
City Council Agenda:  June 13, 2017 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF  
THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE, MINNESOTA 

TUESDAY, JUNE 13, 2017 
7:00 P.M. IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
  
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL  

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting on May 23, 2017 
 

3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

4. VISITORS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Swearing in Officer Ryan Sheak 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. First reading of a request by Spade Landscaping to amend the text of the B-3 zoning district to 
allow contractor’s yards as a conditional use. (17-3-Z) 

 
6. LAND USE 
 

A. Consent 
 

1. Consideration of a Planning Commission recommendation for approval of a request by 
Therese Picha for a Special Home Occupation Permit for the property located at 3390 Auger 
Avenue. (17-2-SHOP) 
 

2. Consideration of a Planning Commission recommendation for approval of a request by Cox 
Contracting on behalf of David & Lynn Howe for a setback variance in order to construct a 
new single family residence for the property located at 4935 Johnson Avenue. (17-12-V) 

 
B. Non-Consent 

 

1. Consideration of a Planning Commission recommendation for approval of a request by 
Meghan Master for a Special Home Occupation Permit for the property located at 2268 Sierra 
Drive. (17-1-SHOP) 
 

2. Consideration of a Planning Commission recommendation for approval of a request by 
Tally’s Dockside for a Conditional Use Permit Amendment to expand the restaurant seating 
to the east side of the road, with a maximum of 125 seats on “Music by the Water” nights: 
Wednesdays, Fridays and Saturdays, Memorial Day through Labor Day for the property 
located at 4441 Lake Avenue South. (17-3-CUP) 
 

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 

Nothing scheduled 
 

8. ORDINANCES 
 

Nothing scheduled 
 



City Council Agenda:  June 13, 2017 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Resolution accepting work and authorizing final payment to MINNCOR Industries for dock 
system at the White Bear Lake Municipal Maria (City Project No. 16-08) 
 

10. CONSENT 
 

A. Resolution approving business licenses through business cycle ending March 31, 2018 
 

B. Resolution approving the Mayor and City Manager to execute the NYFS contract 
 

C. Resolution approving use of Railroad Park for Special Team Charities “Fed and Wed” event 
 

D. Acceptance of April Park Advisory Commission Minutes; April Environmental Advisory 
Commission Minutes; May Planning Commission Minutes 

 
11. DISCUSSION 

 
A. White Bear Lake Conservation District Budget 

 
12. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 

 

 Attorney RFP 
 Dog Beach update 
 Sports Center update 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT 
  



 
MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE, MINNESOTA 

TUESDAY, MAY 23, 2017 
7:00 P.M. IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL  

 
Mayor Jo Emerson called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Councilmembers Kevin Edberg, 
Steven Engstran, Dan Jones and Bill Walsh were present.  Councilmember Biehn was absent 
- excused.  Staff members present were City Manager Ellen Richter, City Engineer Mark 
Burch, Finance Director Don Rambow, City Clerk Kara Coustry and City Attorney Roger 
Jensen. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Jones seconded by Councilmember Engstran, to approve 
the Minutes of May 9, 2017, as presented. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
Mayor Emerson requested the following Agenda addition: 
 

Agenda Item 4A. Presentation - VFW Monument in Veteran’s Park 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Engstran, to approve 
the Agenda as amended. 
 
The motion carried unanimously.  

 
4. VISITORS AND PRESENTATIONS 

 
A. Presentation – VFW Monument in Veteran’s Park 

 
Mayor Emerson introduced Commander of VFW Post 1782, Rick Gwynn, and invited him 
to address the City Council.  Mr. Gwynn stated plans are underway to fund and erect a 
Veteran’s Memorial in Veteran’s Park, that will feature images from the five branches of 
service as well as a poem dedicated to all veterans.  He added a walkway near the memorial 
will be set with pavers that can be purchased and dedicated to veterans.  He noted this will 
fund the memorial project. 
 
Mr. Gwynn stated the project kick-off date is Memorial Day, May 29, 2017, and the 
dedication is planned for Veteran’s Day, November 11, 2017.  He added $4,000 has been 
raised so far, and grants have been received from Wal-Mart and a local car dealership, as 
well as a commander’s widow who donated $1,000 in her husband’s memory. 



 
City Council Minutes:  May 23, 2017 

Page 2 
 

 
Mr. Gwynn stated the back of the monument will be inscribed with the words “Veteran’s 
Memorial Park, City of White Bear Lake, Monument installed by VFW”.  He added there 
will be no additional signage in the Memorial Park.  He noted the VFW Post 1782 website 
will have additional information. 
 
Councilmember Edberg asked what the fundraising goal is for this project.  Mr. Gwynn 
stated the project will cost approximately $25,000.  He added 200 pavers will need to be 
sold.  He noted there will be 2 sizes available: 4x8-inch pavers will be sold for $100, and 
8x8-inch pavers will be sold for $200. 
 
Mayor Emerson thanked Mr. Gwynn for his efforts and dedication to this important 
memorial project. 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
Nothing scheduled 

 
6. LAND USE 

 
Nothing scheduled 

 
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 
Nothing scheduled 
 

8. ORDINANCES 
 
Nothing scheduled 

 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. Resolution accepting bids and awarding contract for consulting services for design and 

construction management services for the White Bear Lake Sports Center Renovation 
(Project No. 18-09) 

 
City Engineer Burch reviewed the staff report, and explained that the City Council, in 
cooperation with the White Bear Lake skating community, represented by the White Bear 
Lake Hockey Association, has been considering renovations to White Bear Lake Sports 
Center.   
 
The White Bear Lake Hockey Association is representing the entire White Bear Lake 
skating community in this project and, as a partner with the City, has pledged a 50% 
financial commitment to a maximum of $2 million. 
 
At its April 25, 2017 meeting, the City Council authorized the Engineering Department to 
request proposals from consulting firms for design and construction management services 
for this project.  Bids were requested from 6 firms with expertise in ice arena design and 
construction.   
 



 
City Council Minutes:  May 23, 2017 

Page 3 
 

City Staff recommends that the contract for design and construction management services 
for this project be awarded to Kraus-Anderson and JLG Architects.  The total contract 
amount of $448,868 is based on a $4 million total construction cost. 

 
A proposal for authorization and preparation of advertising for bids for the final phase will 
be brought before the City Council at its July 25, 2017, Regular Meeting.  The final design 
plan contract will be bid out in September, with bids presented to the City Council for their 
review at their December 12, 2017, Regular Meeting. 
 
It is anticipated that construction will commence on April 1, 2018, and the project will be 
completed by November 1, 2018. 
 
City Manager Richter introduced Lisa Beecroft, White Bear Lake Skate School, and Kevin 
McFarlane, White Bear Lake Hockey Association.   
 
Ms. Beecroft stated a group called Friends of the White Bear Sports Center has been 
convened to engage potential donors and begin a fundraising campaign to supplement the 
money raised by the Hockey Association to date.  She added the Friends group hopes to 
raise sufficient funds to look beyond Phase 1 and the 1-rink solution. 
 
Mr. McFarlane stated the White Bear Lake skating community is excited to have the 
opportunity to partner with the City in the Sports Center renovation.  He added their bank 
has indicated that, with the backing of gambling efforts, they will be able to service the 
debt on a $2 million loan, if that becomes necessary. 
 
Mr. McFarlane presented a check for $34,694 to the City of White Bear Lake, for 50% of 
the cost of Phase 1.  He added funding for Phase 2 will be presented to the City Council in 
July 2017. 
 
Mayor Emerson thanked the Skating Association representatives, adding the City Council 
appreciates their partnership. 
 
Councilmember Edberg referred to a memo from the City Attorney that indicated that there 
were some missing aspects of the contract that should be added.  He asked whether 
performance bonds are a part of the contract with Kraus-Anderson.  City Engineer Burch 
stated performance bonds will be a part of the construction documents.  He added this 
contract is for engineering and construction management services. 
 
Edberg asked whether the funding partners will be engaged in the design process and 
beyond, and what the relationship will entail. 
 
City Engineer Burch stated the proposals received by the City were reviewed with the 
Hockey Association, and they will also be involved in the design process and throughout 
the project until construction is complete. 
 
Councilmember Walsh asked how the contractor makes their money and manages the 
project. 
 
City Engineer Burch explained the contract includes $69,388 for preliminary design and 
$80,680 for final design and plan preparation.  He added the contractor’s construction 



 
City Council Minutes:  May 23, 2017 

Page 4 
 

management fee is 7.37% based on the $4 million total project cost. 
 

Councilmember Walsh asked where the City’s share of funding will come from.  City 
Finance Director Rambow stated the City Council had discussed a variety of potential 
financing options, including the reallocation or restructuring of an internal loan that was 
originally set up for the YMCA.  He added this internal loan is currently being repaid by 
the original tax levy assessed for construction of the Sports Center.  He noted an internal 
loan would not impact future tax levies.  Finance Director Rambow stated the internal loan 
is being paid back through excess from rental of marina slips.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Engstran, seconded by Councilmember Walsh, to adopt 
Resolution No. 12033 accepting bids and awarding contract for consulting services for 
design and construction management services for the White Bear Lake Sports Center 
Renovation. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

B. Resolution approving ambulance rate adjustment 
 

City Manager Richter reviewed the staff report and explained that the City’s ambulance 
service is a self-supporting municipal enterprise operation, and City Staff conducts an 
annual rate review.  An increase in rates for the service is currently necessary to meet 
operational costs, and to the extent possible, capital costs. 
 
In 2014, the City added daytime ambulance service shifts to relieve pressure on paid on-
call staff and reduce dependence on mutual aid from neighboring communities.   
 
The addition of full-time staff has proven successful, with a significant reduction in fractal 
response times for daytime calls. Fractal response time measurement refers to a percentage 
of calls that are reached in less than 10 minutes and 59 seconds. 
 
City Staff is proposing the addition of two hourly paid staff positions, or “duty shifts”, 
during the non-working hours of the City’s south and north end crews.  All paid on-call 
staff would be eligible for duty shifts, with a limited number of hours per month.  There 
would be an estimated annual cost increase for the service of $95,000. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Walsh, to adopt 
Resolution No. 12034 approving ambulance rate adjustment. Councilmember Engstran 
abstained.  The motion carried. 
 

10. HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  
 

HRA Acting Chair Dan Jones called the Housing and Redevelopment Authority to order 
at 7:35 p.m. (please refer to the minutes of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority for 
action taken that included the following items): 
 
1.  Call to order 
2.  Roll call 
3.  Approval of the agenda 
4.  Approval of the January 10, 2017 Minutes 



 
City Council Minutes:  May 23, 2017 

Page 5 
 

5.  Resolution approving purchase of tax forfeit property at 3695 St. Regis for affordable 
housing homeownership opportunity (Twin Cities Habitat for Humanity) 
 
6.  Adjournment 
 
Mayor Emerson reconvened the City Council meeting at 7:38 p.m.  

 
11. CONSENT 

 
A. Resolution approving on-sale liquor licenses for Mizu Japanese Restaurant. Resolution 

No. 12035 
 

B. Resolution approving on-sale liquor licenses for Lakeshore Players. Resolution No. 12036 
 

C. Resolution approving dispatcher’s health insurance benefits. Resolution No. 12037 
 

D. Resolution authorizing approval of gambling manager at American Legion. Resolution 
No. 12038 
 

E. Resolution approving Master Partnership Contract with the State of Minnesota. Resolution 
No. 12039 
 

F. Resolution approving massage therapist licenses. Resolution No. 12040 
 

It was moved by Councilmember Walsh seconded by Councilmember Jones to approve the 
Consent Agenda. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
12. DISCUSSION 

 
Nothing scheduled 

 
13. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 
 

City Manager Richter stated City Staff are reviewing 11 responses to the Request for Proposals 
(RFP) for City Attorney Jensen’s replacement.  She stated City Staff hopes to interview finalist 
candidates prior to the City Council’s June 27, 2017, Regular Meeting. 
 
City Manager Richter stated new banners have been designed and created by Sail La Vie, a 
White Bear Lake sail repair and sailcloth creation company.  She added some of the new 
banners are up and they look great. 
 
City Manager Richter stated the week of May 28, 2017 is Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 
Week.  She added there has been a lot of activity at Regions Hospital, honoring EMS staff and 
technicians for their dedication.  She noted the City of White Bear Lake annually recognizes 
EMS service providers within the community, and publicly acknowledges their important 
work. 
 
City Manager Richter stated the City has discussed the possibility of purchasing body cameras 



 
City Council Minutes:  May 23, 2017 

Page 6 
 

for the Police Department.  She added three Officers will be wearing body cameras as part of 
a demonstration, in accordance with a policy established by the Bureau of Criminal 
Apprehension (BCA) and League of Minnesota Cities.  She noted the policy was adopted for 
these types of demonstrations.  The City will also create its own policy before cameras are 
considered for purchase. 
 
City Manager Richter stated the Police Department’s recent bike sale raised $2,100 raised from 
the sale of bikes that had been confiscated, lost or never reclaimed.  The City’s portion of the 
funds will be put towards the Police Department-sponsored Bike Rodeo on June 17, 2017. 
 
City Manager Richter stated signage has been installed at the dog beach as a result of 
restrictions put in place earlier this spring. She added City staff have visited and observed the 
area, and notes and observations are being logged by City Clerk Kara Coustry.  She encouraged 
the City Council to visit the area and send an email, or any residents’ emails they receive, to 
Ms. Coustry to keep track of tangible evidence and observations in preparation for a review in 
the fall. 
 
City Manager Richter stated Julie Yoho, White Bear Lake Conservation District, has accepted 
a position with the City of Afton.  She discussed the interim plans with a representative from 
the Birch Lake Improvement District while a replacement is sought, as Ms. Yuho also did some 
work for them.  She noted Mary Harrington, who worked for the District for many years, is 
filling in at the White Bear Lake Conservation District in the interim. 
 
City Manager Richter recently discussed preliminary budget issues with the White Bear Lake 
Conservation District representatives.  She added a detailed budget summary will be emailed 
to the City Council for their review and discussion at the next Regular Meeting.  She 
recommended that the City Council send a formal letter to the Conservation District before the 
budget is finalized. 
 
City Manager Richter stated the traditional Memorial Day Parade will begin at City Hall, and 
proceed Union Cemetery.  She added the parade line-up will begin at 9:00 a.m. to be followed 
by the parade at 9:30 a.m.  Further details are available on the City website. A Memorial Day 
ceremony will be held at the VFW at 2:00 p.m. 
 
City Engineer Burch stated City street construction projects are progressing, City Staff have 
been satisfied with the contractor’s performance.  He added concrete and sanitary sewer work 
are being completed, and milling will begin on Wednesday May 31, 2017, on Birch Lake 
Boulevard, White Bear Parkway South, and in the street reconstruction area. 
 
City Engineer Burch stated planters in front of City Hall are currently being renovated. 
 
City Engineer Burch stated the lake level is way up, almost six inches in the past week.  He 
added the marina slips are all rented, canoe racks are full, and there is a lot of activity at the 
boat ramp.  He noted it will be a busy summer, and residents are looking forward to spending 
time on the water. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business before the Council, it was moved by Councilmember Engberg 
seconded by Councilmember Jones to adjourn the regular meeting at 7:49 p.m. 



 
City Council Minutes:  May 23, 2017 

Page 7 
 

 
  
       

__________________________ 
Jo Emerson, Mayor  

 
ATTEST: 
 

 
      
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 
 



6.A.1 
 

City of White Bear Lake 
Community Development Department 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Ellen Richter, City Manager 
 
From:  The Planning Commission 
 
Through: Elizabeth Showalter, Planning Intern 
 
Date:  June 6, 2017 for June 13, 2017 City Council Meeting 
 
Subject: Therese Picha, 3390 Auger Avenue – Case No. 17-2-SHOP 
 
 
REQUEST  
A Special Home Occupation Permit to operate a single operator massage therapy business from 
her residence.  
 
SUMMARY 
No one from the public spoke to the request.   

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 
On a 7-0 vote, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the Special Home Occupation 
Permit as presented by staff. 

ATTACHMENT 
Resolution of Approval 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 
 RESOLUTION APPROVING  

A SPECIAL HOME OCCUPATION PERMIT FOR THERESE PICHA 
AT 3390 AUGER AVENUE 

 WITHIN THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE, MINNESOTA 
 
 
WHEREAS, a proposal (17-2-SHOP) has been submitted by Therese Picha to the City Council 
requesting a Special Home Occupation permit from the City of White Bear Lake at the following 
site: 
 

ADDRESS:  3390 Auger Avenue 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Lot 2, Block 1, Beesley Addition (PID: 
353022230084) 

 
WHEREAS, THE APPLICANT SEEKS THE FOLLOWING: Approval of a special home 
occupation permit to allow a single-operator massage therapy out of a single-family residence, per 
Code Section 1302.120, Subd.4; 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has held a public hearing as required by the city Zoning 
Code on May 22, 2017; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the advice and recommendations of the Planning 
Commission regarding the effect of the proposed special home occupation permit upon the health, 
safety, and welfare of the community and its Comprehensive Plan, as well as any concerns related 
to compatibility of uses, traffic, property values, light, air, danger of fire, and risk to public safety 
in the surrounding areas; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of White Bear Lake 
after reviewing the proposal, that the City Council accepts and adopts the following findings of 
the Planning Commission: 
 
1. The proposal is consistent with the city's Comprehensive Plan. 
 
2. The proposal is consistent with existing and future land uses in the area. 
 
3. The proposal conforms to the Zoning Code requirements. 
 
4. The proposal will not depreciate values in the area. 
 
5. The proposal will not overburden the existing public services nor the capacity of the City 

to service the area. 
 
6. Traffic generation will be within the capabilities of the streets serving the site. 
 
7. That the special conditions attached in the form of a conditional use permit are hereby 

approved. 



Case No. 17-2-SHOP Resolution Page 2 
  
FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of White Bear Lake hereby 
approves the requested Special Home Occupation Permit subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. All application materials, maps, drawings, and descriptive information submitted 

with this application shall become part of the permit. 
 
2. If within one (1) year after granting the permit, the use as permitted shall not have 

been initiated, then such permit shall become null and void unless a petition for 
extension of time in which to complete the work has been granted by the City Council.  
Such extension shall be requested in writing and files with the Zoning Administrator 
at least thirty (30) days before the expiration of the original permit.  There shall be 
no charge for the filing of such petition.  The request for extension shall state facts 
showing a goof faith attempt to initiate the use.   
 

3. This permit is issued for a period of one (1) year, to expire on June 13, 2018, after 
which the permit may be reissued.  The renewal shall be processed in accordance 
with the procedural requirements of the initial home occupation. 

 
4. The business shall comply with all provisions of the Home Occupation Section of the 

Zoning Code (Section 1302.125). 
 
5. The applicant shall not have the vested right to a permit by reason of having obtained 

a previous permit.  In applying for and accepting a permit, the permit holder agrees 
that his monetary investment in the home occupation will be fully amortized over the 
life of the permit and that a permit renewal will not be needed to amortize the 
investment.  Each application for the renewal of a permit will be considered de novo 
without taking into consideration that a previous permit has been granted.  The 
previous granting of renewal of a permit shall not constitute a precedent or basis for 
the renewal of a permit. 

 
6. Permits shall not run with the land and shall not be transferable. 
 
7. Sign permit required prior to the installation of any signs. 
 
8. The applicant shall comply with applicable zoning, building, fire and health 

department codes and regulations. This includes the installation of a smoke and 
carbon monoxide detector in the basement utility room. 
 

9. The applicant shall maintain a Massage Therapist License and Massage Therapy 
Establishment License with the City for the duration of the home occupation. 

 
 
 
 



Case No. 17-2-SHOP Resolution Page 3 
  
 
The foregoing resolution, offered by Councilmember                             and supported by 
Councilmember                                           , was declared carried on the following vote: 
 
    
   Ayes: 
   Nays: 
   Passed: 

   
Jo Emerson, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 
 
 
***************************************************************************** 
 
Approval is contingent upon execution and return of this document to the City Planning Office. 
 
I have read and agree to the conditions of this resolution as outlined above. 
 
 
  
Therese Picha                  Date 
 
 
 



6.A.2 
 

City of White Bear Lake 
Community Development Department 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Ellen Richter, City Manager 
 
From:  The Planning Commission 
 
Through: Elizabeth Showalter, Planning Intern 
 
Date:  June 7, 2017 for June 13, 2017 City Council Meeting 
 
Subject: David Howe, 4935 Johnson Avenue– Case No. 17-12-V 
 
 
REQUEST  
A 5-foot variance from the 30-foot setback for the side yard abutting a public right of way. 
 
SUMMARY 
No one from the public spoke to the request.   

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 
On a 7-0 vote, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the variance as presented by 
staff. 

ATTACHMENT 
Resolution of Approval 



 RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

RESOLUTION GRANTING A SETBACK VARIANCE 
FOR 4935 JOHNSON AVENUE 

WITHIN THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE, MINNESOTA 
 
 
WHEREAS, a proposal (17-12-V) has been submitted by Emily Cox, on behalf of the property 
owner, David Howe, to the City Council requesting approval of a variance from the Zoning Code 
of the City of White Bear Lake for the following location: 
 

LOCATION:  4935 Johnson Avenue 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  Lot 6 Block 17 of Auerbachs Rearrangement of White 
Bear and adjacent, northern 10 feet of 9th Street (PID: 133022220062) 
 

WHEREAS, THE APPLICANT SEEKS THE FOLLOWING:   A 5-foot variance from the 
30-foot side yard setback requirement for yards abutting a public right of way per Code Section 
1303.040, Subd.5.c  
  
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing as required by the Zoning Code on 
May 22, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the advice and recommendations of the Planning 
Commission regarding the effect of the proposed variances upon the health, safety, and welfare of 
the community and its Comprehensive Plan, as well as any concerns related to compatibility of 
uses, traffic, property values, light, air, danger of fire, and risk to public safety in the surrounding 
areas;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of White Bear Lake 
that the City Council accepts and adopts the following findings of the Planning Commission: 
 
1. The requested variances will not: 

a. Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property. 
b. Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street. 
c. Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety. 
d. Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the 

neighborhood or in any way be contrary to the intent of this Code. 
 
2. The variances are a reasonable use of the land or building and the variances are the 

minimum required to accomplish this purpose.  
 

3. The variances will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the City Code. 
 

4. The variances will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the 
public welfare. 

 



Case No. 17-12-V Reso Approval Page 2 
  
5. The non-conforming uses of neighboring lands, structures, or buildings in the same district 

are not the sole grounds for issuance of the variances. 
 
FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of White Bear Lake hereby 
approves the requested variances, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. All application materials, maps, drawings, and descriptive information submitted in 

this application shall become part of the permit. 
 

2. Per Section 1301.060, Subd.3, the variance shall become null and void if the project 
has not been completed or utilized within one (1) calendar year after the approval 
date, subject to petition for renewal.  Such petition shall be requested in writing and 
shall be submitted at least 30 days prior to expiration. 

 
3. The applicant shall verify the property lines and have the property pins exposed at 

the time of inspection. 
 
4. A building permit shall be obtained before any work begins. 

 
Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall: 
 
5. Successfully obtain an administrative variance for the front yard setback. 
 
6. Provide a stormwater infiltration system plan for the excess impervious area per 

Section 1303.230 Subd. 5. Design to be approved by the City Engineer. 
 

7. Provide stormwater and grading plans to prevent the flow of water on to neighboring 
properties. Design to be approved by Staff. 

 
 
The foregoing resolution, offered by Councilmember                             and supported by 
Councilmember                                           , was declared carried on the following vote: 
 
   Ayes: 
   Nays: 
   Passed: 
   

Jo Emerson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 
  



Case No. 17-12-V Reso Approval Page 3 
  
 
Approval is contingent upon execution and return of this document to the City Planning Office. 
I have read and agree to the conditions of this resolution as outlined above. 
 
 
     
David Howe                   Date 
 
     



6.B.1 
 

City of White Bear Lake 
Community Development Department 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Ellen Richter, City Manager 
 
From:  The Planning Commission 
 
Through: Elizabeth Showalter, Planning Intern 
 
Date:  June 7, 2017 for June 13, 2017 City Council Meeting 
 
Subject: Meghan Master Salon, 2268 Sierra Drive – Case No. 17-1-SHOP 
 
 
REQUEST  
A Special Home Occupation Permit to operate a beauty salon in her residence.  
 
SUMMARY 
No one from the public spoke to the request during the Planning Commission meeting. 

Edward Bullis of 3982 McKnight Rd. submitted a letter to the City Clerk on 6/8/17, strongly 
opposing the Special Home Occupation Permit (attached). 

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 
On a 7-0 vote, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the Special Home Occupation 
Permit as presented by staff. 

ATTACHMENT 
Resolution of Approval 
Bullis Letter  



RESOLUTION NO.  
 
 RESOLUTION APPROVING  

A SPECIAL HOME OCCUPATION PERMIT FOR MEGHAN MASTER 
AT 2268 SIERRA DRIVE 

 WITHIN THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE, MINNESOTA 
 
 
WHEREAS, a proposal (17-1-SHOP) has been submitted by Meghan Master to the City Council 
requesting a Special Home Occupation permit from the City of White Bear Lake at the following 
site: 
 

ADDRESS:  2268 Sierra Drive 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  Lot 27, Block 17, Lakeaires No. 5, Ramsey Co. MN. 
(PID # 253022220085) 

 
WHEREAS, THE APPLICANT SEEKS THE FOLLOWING: A Special Home Occupation 
Permit to allow a single-operator beauty salon out of a single-family residence, per Code Section 
1302.120, Subd.4; 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has held a public hearing as required by the city Zoning 
Code on May 22, 2017; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the advice and recommendations of the Planning 
Commission regarding the effect of the proposed Special Home Occupation Permit upon the 
health, safety, and welfare of the community and its Comprehensive Plan, as well as any concerns 
related to compatibility of uses, traffic, property values, light, air, danger of fire, and risk to public 
safety in the surrounding areas; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of White Bear Lake 
after reviewing the proposal, that the City Council accepts and adopts the following findings of 
the Planning Commission: 
 
1. The proposal is consistent with the city's Comprehensive Plan. 
 
2. The proposal is consistent with existing and future land uses in the area. 
 
3. The proposal conforms to the Zoning Code requirements. 
 
4. The proposal will not depreciate values in the area. 
 
5. The proposal will not overburden the existing public services nor the capacity of the City 

to service the area. 
 
6. Traffic generation will be within the capabilities of the streets serving the site. 
 
7. That the special conditions attached in the form of a conditional use permit are hereby 

approved. 



Case No. 17-1-SHOP Reso Page 2 
  
 
FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of White Bear Lake hereby 
approves the requested Special Home Occupation Permit subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. All application materials, maps, drawings, and descriptive information submitted in 

this application shall become part of the permit. 
 

2. Per Section 1302.120, Subd.3, if within one (1) year after granting the Home 
Occupation Permit, the use as allowed by the permit is not established, the permit 
shall become null and void unless a petition for an extension of time in which to 
complete or utilize the use has been granted by the City Council.  Such petition shall 
be requested in writing and shall be submitted at least 30 days prior to expiration.  

 
3. This permit is issued for a one-year period with the expiration date being June 13, 

2017, before which the permit may be renewed, in accordance with the procedural 
requirement of the initial home occupation.  

 
4. The applicant shall not have the vested right to a permit by reason of having obtained 

a previous permit.  In applying for and accepting a permit, the permit holder agrees 
that her monetary investment in the home occupation will be fully amortized over the 
life of the permit and that a permit renewal will not be needed to amortize the 
investment.  Each application for the renewal of a permit will be considered de novo 
without taking into consideration that a previous permit has been granted.  The 
previous granting of renewal of a permit shall not constitute a precedent or basis for 
the renewal of a permit.  

 
5. This permit shall not run with the land and shall not be transferable. 
 
6. The applicant shall maintain her manager’s license as required by state law.  Proof of 

such shall be provided prior to final inspection of the salon conversion. 
 

7. The business shall comply with all provisions of the Home Occupation Section of the 
Zoning Code (Section 1302.125). 

 
8. The applicant shall comply with applicable building, fire and health department codes 

and regulations. This includes the installation of a smoke detector in the salon room, 
a carbon monoxide detector in one of the bedrooms, and smoke detector in the 
basement. 

 
9. Parking for the hair salon is limited to the applicant’s driveway. 

 
10. The property shall not display any signage other than that which is allowed by code; 

a sign permit is required prior to the installation of any signage. 
  



Case No. 17-1-SHOP Reso Page 3 
  

 
The foregoing resolution, offered by Councilmember                             and supported by 
Councilmember                                           , was declared carried on the following vote: 
 
    
   Ayes: 
   Nays: 
   Passed: 
 
 
 

   
Jo Emerson, Mayor 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 
 
 
***************************************************************************** 
 
Approval is contingent upon execution and return of this document to the City Planning Office. 
 
I have read and agree to the conditions of this resolution as outlined above. 
 
 
 
  
Meghan Master               Date 
 
 
 
 
 





 RESOLUTION NO.  _______ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A REQUEST FOR 
A TEMPORARY CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

FOR 4441 LAKE AVENUE SOUTH 
WITHIN THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE, MINNESOTA 

 
 
WHEREAS, a proposal (17-3-CUP) has been submitted by Keith L. and Janet R. Dehnert, requesting 
approval of a temporary Conditional Use Permit from the City of White Bear Lake at the following 
site: 
 

ADDRESS:  4441 Lake Avenue South 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: The East 70 feet of Lot 12 & the East 70 Feet of Lot 13, 
Block 3, Rearrangement of Lake Subject to Lake Ave & with Riparian Rights (PID # 
233022210088) 
 

THE APPLICANT SEEKS THE FOLLOWING PERMITS:  A temporary Conditional Use 
Permit Amendment for a full-service sit-down restaurant with liquor per Code Section 1303.227, 
utilizing off-site parking accommodations on a trial basis, to allow 125 seats on music nights 
(Wednesdays, Fridays and Saturdays from 6:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. Memorial Day through Labor Day); 
to be re-evaluated in Fall 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has held a public hearing as required by the City Zoning 
Code on May 22, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the advice and recommendations of the Planning 
Commission regarding the effect of the proposed temporary conditional use permit upon the health, 
safety, and welfare of the community and its Comprehensive Plan, as well as any concerns related to 
compatibility of uses, traffic, property values, light, air, danger of fire, and risk to public safety in the 
surrounding areas;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of White Bear Lake 
after reviewing the proposal, that the City Council accepts and adopts the following findings of the 
Planning Commission: 
 

1. The proposal is consistent with the City's Comprehensive Plan. 
 

2. The proposal is consistent with existing and future land uses in the area. 
 

3. The proposal conforms to the Zoning Code requirements. 
 
4. The proposal will not depreciate values in the area. 

 
5. The proposal will not overburden the existing public services nor the capacity of the City to 

service the area. 
 

6. Traffic generation will be within the capabilities of the streets serving the site. 
 



Case # 17-3-CUP Page 2 of 3 
 
FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of White Bear Lake hereby 
approves the temporary conditional use permit subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. All application materials, maps, drawings, and descriptive information submitted with this 

application shall become part of the permit. 
 
2. The applicant shall enter into a joint agreement with Newtrax (or other similar shuttle service 

provider) and the City of White Bear Lake to provide at least 27 parking stalls, with shuttle 
transportation to and from, the Former Public Works property, or other mutually agreeable 
location.  The service may run longer, but shall run from at least 4 hours between 5:00 pm and 
10:00 pm on music nights.  A parking lot attendant shall be provided at all times while the 
shuttle service is provided. Details to be negotiated through the contract agreement, which 
shall be finalized prior to June 21, 2017.  All staff and any vehicles associated with 
entertainment are required to use the overflow parking. 

 
3. The total number of seats both inside and out, on both sides of the road, shall not exceed 63 

on non-music nights and 125 on music nights.  The applicant shall provide a new seating plan 
to reflect the approved number of seats, prior to the execution of the contract agreement.  If 
present, benches shall count toward seating at the rate of 1 seat for every 22 inches.  Excess 
seating to be stacked and secured away from customer or public access, subject to staff 
approval.  Customers may not bring their own seating onto the premises.  No customer seating 
on the trail, on the docks or on the Whitaker Street end. On non-music nights, the two parking 
stalls at Whitaker Street end shall only be used by the owner or staff. 

 
4. Private security, or at a minimum a dedicated staff person, shall be devoted to monitoring the 

use of the entrances, containing the alcohol to the premises, and barring customers from 
bringing their own chairs onto the premises.   

  
5. Rental boats may only be used for customer seating so long as an equal amount of seating is 

removed from the patio – total seating count not to exceed 125.  Boat renters shall be 
encouraged to car pool on music nights.  Rental boats are still limited to no more than 16, per 
the 1992 conditional use permit approval (Case # 92-11-S / Reso # 6804).   

 
6. The applicant shall provide a signage plan for temporary signage directing Tally’s customers 

to the overflow parking area on the Former Public Works property on the appropriate 
evenings.  The signage plan shall be reviewed and approved by City staff prior to 
implementation.  Parking signs shall be posted prior to the start of the shuttle service and 
removed at the end of the service.  Information on where to park shall also be prominently 
provided on the Tally’s & CG Hooks’ webpages, facebook pages, and other 
marketing/adverting outlets, including any banners. 

 
7. This temporary approval shall expire on September 4, 2017 and shall be re-evaluated by the 

Planning Commission on September 25, 2017 and by the City Council on October 10, 2017 
at the applicant’s expense of a CUP Amendment. 

 
8. Continued operation of the music nights is contingent upon availability of and access to 

parking sufficient to satisfy condition #3. This trial arrangement does not guarantee additional 
seating authorization for the 2018 season.  Even if continued for subsequent years, this off-



Case # 17-3-CUP Page 3 of 3 
 

site parking arrangement is not a permanent solution.  The applicants are responsible for 
providing and implementing a permanent solution at their own expense.   

 
9. Outdoor entertainment shall cease by 9:00 pm unless a special event permit is obtained from 

the City. Noise levels from outdoor entertainment shall not create a nuisance to area businesses 
or residents and/or violate the City’s noise ordinance.   

 
10. The bar-b-que cooker/smoker in the front yard of CG Hooks may not be heated for any reason.  

It shall not be used for cooking, smoking, storage or any other purpose other than display.   
 
11. The applicants shall submit a SAC (Sewer Availability Charge) determination letter from the 

Metropolitan Council prior to June 21, 2017. 
 
12. No new lighting is proposed or approved.   
 
13. All signage must comply with the City’s Sign Ordinance.   
 
14. All outdoor storage shall be in compliance with City Code. 
 
15. The use shall in no way contribute to water pollution. 
   
The foregoing resolution, offered by Council member                             and supported by Council 
member                                          , was declared carried on the following vote: 
   
   Ayes: 
   Nays: 
   Passed: 

   
Jo Emerson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 
 
******************************************************************************** 
 
Approval is contingent upon execution and return of this document to the City Planning Office. 
 
I have read and agree to the conditions of this resolution as outlined above. 
 
 
_____________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Keith L. Dehnert   Date  Janet R. Dehnert   Date 
 



6.B.2 
 

City of White Bear Lake 
Community Development Department 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
To:  Ellen Richter, City Manager 
 
From:  The Planning Commission 
 
Through: Samantha Crosby, Associate Planner 
 
Date:  June 8, 2017 for the June 13, 2017 City Council Meeting 
 
Subject: Tally’s Dockside, 4441 Lake Avenue South – Case No. 17-3-S 
 
 
REQUEST  
Approval of a Conditional Use Permit Amendment to expand the restaurant seating to the east side 
of Lake Avenue, and to further expand seating on “Music by the Water” nights.  
 

SUMMARY 
There were a number of attendees present at the public hearing held at the May 22nd Planning 
Commission meeting to lend their support for the continuation of Music by the Water nights. 
Others were present to express concerns related to equity in parking and leasing arrangements. On 
a 7-0 vote, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the Conditional Use Permit with 
a number of changes to the conditions of approval, leaving at least one for further negotiation 
between staff and the applicants. Since then staff and the applicants have met to both expand upon 
and refine the conditions of approval. The attached revised resolution was crafted with the 
applicant’s input and their verbal agreement.  It is understood by all parties that the provision of 
off-site parking established to accommodate the crowds generated on music nights will be 
reviewed again after this summer season.   
 
At the Planning Commission meeting there was considerable discussion regarding allowed use of 
the applicant’s existing liquor license.  It has since been clarified with the applicants that a catering 
permit, which they have received from the state, does not extend permission for service onto the 
docks.  Staff has received conflicting information from the state regarding the City’s authority to 
approve an extension of Tally’s existing liquor license to include the docks.  Until that has been 
resolved, the owners have been advised that liquor may not be sold beyond its licensed premises, 
which includes its outdoor patio.  However, this does not prohibit food service to the docks.   
 
The Council has received considerable correspondence regarding this issue.  Attached is an 
additional letter from a neighboring resident dated June 1st with the request that it be added for 
consideration.  Also attached is the memo included in the Planning Commission packet which 
provides considerable background information.  As described, the conditions originally 
recommended to the Planning Commission have since been amended; however, the background 
information remains relevant.  



6.B.2 
 

 
RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 
Approve the attached resolutions – the first denying permanent approval, and the second granting 
temporary approval of the Conditional Use Permit to expand restaurant seating to the east side of 
Lake Avenue, to be revisited again in September 2017. 
 
ATTACHMENT 
Resolution of Denial 
Resolution of Temporary Approval 
Staff email dated May 18, 2017 
Parenteau letter dated June 1, 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 RESOLUTION NO.   ________ 
 

RESOLUTION DENYING A  
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AMENDMENT 

FOR 4441 LAKE AVENUE SOUTH 
 
   
WHEREAS, a proposal (17-3-CUP) has been submitted by Keith L. and Janet R. Dehnert, to the 
City Council requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit Amendment from the City of White 
Bear Lake at the following location: 
 

LOCATION:  4441 Lake Avenue South 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: The East 70 feet of Lot 12 & the East 70 Feet of Lot 
13, Block 3, Rearrangement of Lake Subject to Lake Ave & with Riparian Rights 
(PID # 233022210088) 

 
WHEREAS, the applicant seeks approval of additional seating at an existing business, per Code 
Section 1203.227 and 1302.050; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has held a public hearing as required by the City Zoning 
Code on May 22, 2017;  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the advice and recommendations of the Planning 
Commission regarding the effect of the proposed conditional use permit upon the health, safety, 
and welfare of the community and its Comprehensive Plan, as well as any concerns related to 
compatibility of uses, traffic, property values, light, air, danger of fire, and risk to public safety in 
the surrounding areas;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of White Bear Lake 
that the City Council hereby denies the request, based upon the following findings: 
 

1. The proposed use does not conform with all performance standards of the zoning code, 
specifically parking; as sufficient off-street parking has not been provided.   

 
2. The proposal will overburden the existing public services or the capacity of the City to 

service the area. 
 

3. Traffic generation will be beyond the capabilities of the streets and trails serving the site. 
  



Case No. 17-3-CUP Reso - Denial Page 2 
  
 
The foregoing resolution, offered by Councilmember                             and supported by 
Councilmember                                           , was declared carried on the following vote: 
    
   Ayes: 
   Nays: 
   Passed: 

 
 
   

Jo Emerson, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 



 RESOLUTION NO.  _______ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A REQUEST FOR 
A TEMPORARY CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

FOR 4441 LAKE AVENUE SOUTH 
WITHIN THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE, MINNESOTA 

 
 
WHEREAS, a proposal (17-3-CUP) has been submitted by Keith L. and Janet R. Dehnert, requesting 
approval of a temporary Conditional Use Permit from the City of White Bear Lake at the following 
site: 
 

ADDRESS:  4441 Lake Avenue South 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: The East 70 feet of Lot 12 & the East 70 Feet of Lot 13, 
Block 3, Rearrangement of Lake Subject to Lake Ave & with Riparian Rights (PID # 
233022210088) 
 

THE APPLICANT SEEKS THE FOLLOWING PERMITS:  A temporary Conditional Use 
Permit Amendment for a full-service sit-down restaurant with liquor per Code Section 1303.227, 
utilizing off-site parking accommodations on a trial basis, to allow 125 seats on music nights 
(Wednesdays, Fridays and Saturdays from 6:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. Memorial Day through Labor Day); 
to be re-evaluated in Fall 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has held a public hearing as required by the City Zoning 
Code on May 22, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the advice and recommendations of the Planning 
Commission regarding the effect of the proposed temporary conditional use permit upon the health, 
safety, and welfare of the community and its Comprehensive Plan, as well as any concerns related to 
compatibility of uses, traffic, property values, light, air, danger of fire, and risk to public safety in the 
surrounding areas;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of White Bear Lake 
after reviewing the proposal, that the City Council accepts and adopts the following findings of the 
Planning Commission: 
 

1. The proposal is consistent with the City's Comprehensive Plan. 
 

2. The proposal is consistent with existing and future land uses in the area. 
 

3. The proposal conforms to the Zoning Code requirements. 
 
4. The proposal will not depreciate values in the area. 

 
5. The proposal will not overburden the existing public services nor the capacity of the City to 

service the area. 
 

6. Traffic generation will be within the capabilities of the streets serving the site. 
 



Case # 17-3-CUP Page 2 of 3 
 
FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of White Bear Lake hereby 
approves the temporary conditional use permit subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. All application materials, maps, drawings, and descriptive information submitted with this 

application shall become part of the permit. 
 
2. The applicant shall enter into a joint agreement with Newtrax (or other similar shuttle service 

provider) and the City of White Bear Lake to provide at least 27 parking stalls, with shuttle 
transportation to and from, the Former Public Works property, or other mutually agreeable 
location.  The service may run longer, but shall run from at least 4 hours between 5:00 pm and 
10:00 pm on music nights.  A parking lot attendant shall be provided at all times while the 
shuttle service is provided. Details to be negotiated through the contract agreement, which 
shall be finalized prior to June 21, 2017.  All staff and any vehicles associated with 
entertainment are required to use the overflow parking. 

 
3. The total number of seats both inside and out, on both sides of the road, shall not exceed 63 

on non-music nights and 125 on music nights.  The applicant shall provide a new seating plan 
to reflect the approved number of seats, prior to the execution of the contract agreement.  If 
present, benches shall count toward seating at the rate of 1 seat for every 22 inches.  Excess 
seating to be stacked and secured away from customer or public access, subject to staff 
approval.  Customers may not bring their own seating onto the premises.  No customer seating 
on the trail, on the docks or on the Whitaker Street end. On non-music nights, the two parking 
stalls at Whitaker Street end shall only be used by the owner or staff. 

 
4. Private security, or at a minimum a dedicated staff person, shall be devoted to monitoring the 

use of the entrances, containing the alcohol to the premises, and barring customers from 
bringing their own chairs onto the premises.   

  
5. Rental boats may only be used for customer seating so long as an equal amount of seating is 

removed from the patio – total seating count not to exceed 125.  Boat renters shall be 
encouraged to car pool on music nights.  Rental boats are still limited to no more than 16, per 
the 1992 conditional use permit approval (Case # 92-11-S / Reso # 6804).   

 
6. The applicant shall provide a signage plan for temporary signage directing Tally’s customers 

to the overflow parking area on the Former Public Works property on the appropriate 
evenings.  The signage plan shall be reviewed and approved by City staff prior to 
implementation.  Parking signs shall be posted prior to the start of the shuttle service and 
removed at the end of the service.  Information on where to park shall also be prominently 
provided on the Tally’s & CG Hooks’ webpages, facebook pages, and other 
marketing/adverting outlets, including any banners. 

 
7. This temporary approval shall expire on September 4, 2017 and shall be re-evaluated by the 

Planning Commission on September 25, 2017 and by the City Council on October 10, 2017 
at the applicant’s expense of a CUP Amendment. 

 
8. Continued operation of the music nights is contingent upon availability of and access to 

parking sufficient to satisfy condition #3. This trial arrangement does not guarantee additional 
seating authorization for the 2018 season.  Even if continued for subsequent years, this off-



Case # 17-3-CUP Page 3 of 3 
 

site parking arrangement is not a permanent solution.  The applicants are responsible for 
providing and implementing a permanent solution at their own expense.   

 
9. Outdoor entertainment shall cease by 9:00 pm unless a special event permit is obtained from 

the City. Noise levels from outdoor entertainment shall not create a nuisance to area businesses 
or residents and/or violate the City’s noise ordinance.   

 
10. The bar-b-que cooker/smoker in the front yard of CG Hooks may not be heated for any reason.  

It shall not be used for cooking, smoking, storage or any other purpose other than display.   
 
11. The applicants shall submit a SAC (Sewer Availability Charge) determination letter from the 

Metropolitan Council prior to June 21, 2017. 
 
12. No new lighting is proposed or approved.   
 
13. All signage must comply with the City’s Sign Ordinance.   
 
14. All outdoor storage shall be in compliance with City Code. 
 
15. The use shall in no way contribute to water pollution. 
   
The foregoing resolution, offered by Council member                             and supported by Council 
member                                          , was declared carried on the following vote: 
   
   Ayes: 
   Nays: 
   Passed: 

   
Jo Emerson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 
 
******************************************************************************** 
 
Approval is contingent upon execution and return of this document to the City Planning Office. 
 
I have read and agree to the conditions of this resolution as outlined above. 
 
 
_____________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Keith L. Dehnert   Date  Janet R. Dehnert   Date 
 







8.A 
 

City of White Bear Lake 
Community Development Department 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Ellen Richter, City Manager 
 
From:  The Planning Commission 
 
Through: Samantha Crosby, Associate Planner 
 
Date:  June 8, 2017 for the June 13, 2017 City Council Meeting 
 
Subject: FIRST READING – Spade Landscaping Case No. 17-3-Z 
 
 
REQUEST  
A text amendment to the Zoning Code Section 1303.140 (the B-3 zoning district) as it relates to 
contractor’s shops and yards.  
 
SUMMARY 
No one from the public spoke to the request.  On a 7-0 vote, the Planning Commission 
recommended approval of the ordinance as proposed.  Since the Planning Commission, staff has 
made a couple of minor revisions to the proposed ordinance. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
No formal action is required for the First Reading of the proposed Ordinance. The second reading 
is scheduled for July 11, 2017. 

ATTACHMENT 
Draft Ordinance 



ORDINANCE NO. 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE ZONING CODE  
AT SECTION 1303.140, “B-3 – AUTO-ORIENTED BUSINESS” DISTRICT 

AS IT RELATES TO CONTRACTORS SHOPS AND YARDS (CASE NO. 17-3-Z) 
 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE, MINNESOTA DOES 
ORDAIN THE FOLLOWING: 
 
SECTION 1.  The Municipal Code of the City of White Bear Lake is hereby amended at 
Section 1303 as follows: 
 
§1303.140  “B-3” AUTO-ORIENTED  BUSINESS DISTRICT 
 

 Subd.4. Conditional Uses. The following are conditional uses in a "B-3" 
District, which require a conditional use permit based upon procedures and provisions set forth in 
and regulated by Section 1301.050 of this Code. 
 
a)  through i) No proposed amendments. 
 
j) Contractors Shops and Yards subject to the following requirements:  
 

1) The site is 150’ from residentially zoned or used property. 
 

2) The site must be at least one acre in size but not more than two acres in size. 
 

3) The site may not be located on a corner lot at the intersection of two roadways. 
 

4) The site may not be a riparian lot. 
 
5) The site must have a principal building constructed of at least two different 

types of building materials on all four elevations, not including concrete block 
or precast concrete panels.  No wall of the building may be without windows. 

 
6) The site must be owner occupied. 

 
7) No outside storage except as allowed in compliance with e) of this subdivision. 

 
8) All conditions pertaining to a specific site are subject to change when the City 

Council, upon investigation in relation to a formal request, finds that the general 
welfare and public betterment can be served as well or better by modifying the 
conditions. 

 
In addition to other remedies available through the Municipal Code, multiple failures to 
comply with any standard of this Permit shall constitute sufficient cause for revocation of 
the Conditional Use Permit, as determined by the City Council following a Public Hearing.  
(Ref. Ord. XX-X-XXXX, mo/day/year) 
  
SECTION 2: This ordinance becomes effective after approval shall take effect and be in 
force following its passage and publication (or, on “date”). 



Case No. 17-3-Z  Page 2 

Passed by the City Council of the City of White Bear Lake, Minnesota. 
 
First Reading: June 13, 2017 
 
Initial Publication: ________________ 
 
Second Reading: ________________ 
 
Final Publication: ________________ 
 
Codified:  ________________ 
 
Posted on web: ________________

 
_______________ 
City Clerk Initials  
       
              
       Jo Emerson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Kara Coustry, City Clerk      
 



9.A 
 

City of White Bear Lake 
City Engineer’s Office 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Ellen Richter, City Manager 
 
From:  Mark Burch, Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
Date:  June 7, 2017 
 
Subject: Final Payment to MINNCOR Industries for Fabrication and Delivery of a New 

160 Dock System for the Municipal Marina - City Project No. 16-08 
 
 
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY  
MINNCOR Industries has completed all of the work required under their contract to fabricate and 
deliver a new 160 slip dock system for the City’s Municipal Marina.  The dock system has been 
installed and put into service.  The quality of the workmanship is very evident and we are receiving 
many compliments from slip renters. 
 
The original contract amount for this dock project was $528,797.90 and the final project cost is 
$528,798.23.  The City processed partial payment No. 1 in January 2017 in the amount of 
$72,444.43 so the final payment due is $456,353.80. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 
Staff recommends Council adopt the resolution authorizing final payment in the amount of 
$456,353.80 to MINNCOR Industries for the Municipal Marian Dock System. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Resolution 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO.:  

 
 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING WORK AND AUTHORIZING  
FINAL PAYMENT TO MINNCOR INDUSTRIES  

FOR NEW DOCK SYSTEM FOR THE WHITE BEAR LAKE MUNICIPAL MARINA 
CITY PROJECT NO.:  16-08 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to a written contract in the amount of $528,797.90, signed 

with the City of White Bear Lake, MINNCOR Industries of Stillwater, Minnesota, has 
satisfactorily completed the New Dock System for the White Bear Lake Municipal Marina, in 
accordance with such contract. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of White 
Bear Lake, Minnesota that the work completed under said contract is hereby accepted and 
approved; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk and Mayor are hereby directed 
to issue final payment in the amount of $456,353.80, for a final contract amount of $528,798.23 
for the New Dock System for the White Bear Lake Municipal Marina. 
 

The foregoing resolution offered by Council Member_______, and supported by  
 
Council Member _________, was declared carried on the following vote: 
 

 
Ayes:   
Nays:   
Passed:  
 

 
________________________ 
Jo Emerson, Mayor    

 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 
     



10.A 
 

City of White Bear Lake 
City Manager’s Office 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Ellen Richter, City Manager 
 
From:  Kara Coustry, City Clerk 
 
Date:  May 31, 2017 
 
Subject: Business Licenses 
 
 
BACKGROUND  
The City’s Ordinance Code requires that certain business activities in the city be licensed and 
comply with the ordinance or terms of the license.  Once approved, city licenses become effective 
through business cycle ending March 31st each year. 
 
SUMMARY 
The city received two applications for retail sales and storage of fireworks.  Pursuant to Section 
1126 of the City’s Municipal Code regulating fireworks sales, an inspection by the Fire 
Department is required in order to determine compliance with local, state and federal regulations. 
Sam’s Club #6309 located at 1850 Buerkle Rd passed its inspection and has provided the 
required license payment and certificate of insurance.  Renaissance Fireworks located at 4391 
South Lake Avenue also passed its inspection, however, their certificate of insurance has not yet 
been secured 
 
The city received five applications for massage related business licenses.  Pursuant to Section 
1127 of the City’s Municipal Code regulating massage, the licensee is required to submit 
documentation which demonstrates they have received the appropriate training and insurance. A 
criminal history check and financial review are also conducted.  The White Bear Lake Police 
Department has verified training credentials, insurance coverage, finances and criminal history 
reports for each of the applicants. 
 
All license approvals are contingent upon satisfying additional license requirements set forth in 
the Municipal Code. 
 
RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 
Staff recommends Council adopt the attached resolution approving specified business licenses 
valid through the city’s business cycle ending on March 31, 2018. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Resolution 



 

RESOLUTION NO.   

RESOLUTION APROVING BUSINESS LICENSES FOR 
LICENSE YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2018 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of White Bear Lake that the 

following business licenses be approved for the year beginning June 14, 2017 and ending March 
31, 2018 subject to receipt of insurance, inspection, background investigation and payment of all 
taxes and fees where applicable. 

 
 

Massage Therapist Licenses 

Therapists Establishment Address 
Nanette Brooks Fresh Face 2179 4th Street Suite 2B 
Theresa Picha Home Practice 3390 Auger Avenue 
Gigi Oritz The Waters of White Bear Lake 3820 Hoffman Road 

 
 

Massage Therapy Establishment Licenses 

Establishment Therapists Address 
Home Practice – Picha Therese Picha 3390 Auger Avenue 
The Waters of White Bear Lake Gigi Oritz 3820 Hoffman Road 

 
 

Fireworks Sales and Storage Licenses 

Establishment Address 
Sam’s Club #6309 1820 Buerkle Road 
Renaissance Fireworks 4391 South Lake Avenue 

 

The foregoing resolution offered by Councilmember _____ and supported by 
Councilmember ___________ was declared carried on the following vote: 

  Ayes:     
Nays:   
Passed:  

_____________________________ 
Jo Emerson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 



10.B 
 

City of White Bear Lake 
City Manager’s Office 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Ellen Richter, City Manager 
 
From:  Kara Coustry, City Clerk 
 
Date:  June 8, 2017 
 
Subject: Resolution approving lease agreement with Northeast Youth and Family 

Services 
 
 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY  
Northeast Youth and Family Services (NYFS) is a non-profit social service agency whose mission 
is to meet the unmet developmental needs of at-risk youth and families within the community 
through collaboration and coordination with existing community resources. 
 
In mid-2012 the City Council authorized a ‘transfer of service’ agreement between the City and 
NYFS to continue most services previously provided by the Community Counseling Center at the 
White Bear Lake location.  The transfer of those services began July 1, 2012 and NYFS is leasing 
the former Counseling Center site.  The initial agreement was for a term of 5 years, expiring on 
June 30, 2017. 
 
No substantive changes to the lease are being proposed.  It provides for another 5-year term, with 
the same $500.00 monthly rent, with an option for the landlord and tenant to revisit rent annually, 
giving due consideration of the volume of usage, non-profit rental rates and other income derived 
by the tenant at this site.   
 
RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 
Staff recommends the City Council adopt the resolution authorizing execution of the attached lease 
with Northeast Youth and Family Services. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Resolution 
Lease Agreement 
 
 



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A LEASE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE AND 

NORTHEAST YOUTH AND FAMILY SERVICES 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City holds title to the property located at 1280 North Birch Lake 
Boulevard; and 

 
WHEREAS, Northeast Youth and Family Services (NYFS) has been leasing 1280 North 

Birch Lake Boulevard from the City since 2012, when it assumed counseling services previously 
provided by the White Bear Lake Community Council Center; and 

 
WHEREAS, in recognition of an acknowledged public purpose, rent shall be $500.00 

monthly for the 5-year term of the lease; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council for the City of White 
Bear Lake, Minnesota, that it hereby authorizes the execution of the lease agreement with 
Northeast Youth and Family Services. 

 
 

The foregoing resolution, offered by Councilmember __________ and supported by 
Councilmember _________, was declared carried on the following vote: 
 
 

Ayes:   
Nays:   
Passed:  

 
 

   
Jo Emerson, Mayor 

 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 
 
 



 

1 
 

 
Northeast Youth and Family Services 

Lease Agreement 

 

This Lease Agreement ("Lease") is made and effective ___________________, 
by and between the City of White Bear Lake, a Minnesota municipal corporation, 
("Landlord") and Northwest Youth and Family Services, a Minnesota nonprofit 
corporation ("Tenant"). 

Landlord is the owner of land and improvements commonly known and numbered 
as 1280 North Birch Lake Boulevard, White Bear Lake, Minnesota, (the “Leased 
Premises”). 

Landlord desires to lease the Leased Premises to Tenant, and Tenant desires to 
lease the Leased Premises from Landlord for use as a location for the providing of 
counseling services previously provided by the White Bear Lake Community 
Counseling Center at the Leased Premises, the term, at the rental rate and upon 
the covenants, conditions and provisions herein set forth.  THEREFORE, in 
consideration of the mutual promises herein contained and other good and 
valuable consideration, it is agreed: 

1. Term. 

A. Landlord hereby leases the Leased Premises to Tenant, and Tenant hereby 
leases the same from Landlord for a term of five (5) years (through June 30, 
2022) so long as Tenant continues providing counseling services and 
complies with the terms of this Lease Agreement.  Subject to mutual 
agreement, the Services provide to meet this agreement may be changed. 

B. Tenant may request an additional five (5) year term which shall not be 
unreasonably denied by landlord. 

 

2. Rent. 

Tenant’s payment for the Leased Premises shall be five hundred ($500) per month.  
Two months prior to the end of each one-year term the landlord and tenant may 
meet and agree upon the future rent with due consideration of the volume of usage, 
non-profit rental rates and other income derived by the tenant at this site.  
Subsequent rent increases shall not be more frequent than annual. 

 



 

2 
 

3. Sublease and Assignment. 

Tenant shall have the right without Landlord's consent, to assign this Lease to a 
corporation with which Tenant may merge or consolidate, to any subsidiary of 
Tenant, to any corporation under common control with Tenant, or to a purchaser 
of substantially all of Tenant's assets, so long as counseling services continue to 
be provided. Except as set forth above, Tenant shall not sublease all or any part 
of the Leased Premises, or assign this Lease in whole or in part without Landlord's 
consent. 

4. Repairs and Maintenance. 

During the Lease term, Tenant shall make, at Tenant's expense, all necessary 
repairs to the Leased Premises. Repairs shall include such items as routine repairs 
of floors, walls, ceilings, plumbing, electrical changes, and other parts of the 
Leased Premises damaged or worn through normal occupancy, except for major 
mechanical systems or the roof, subject to the obligations of the parties otherwise 
set forth in this Lease.  Tenant shall also maintain the leased premises, including 
its grounds and parking lot, in a manner consistent with other premises in the 
immediate area of the leased premises. 

5. Alterations and Improvements. 

Tenant, at Tenant's expense, shall have the right following Landlord's consent to 
remodel, redecorate, and make additions, improvements and replacements of and 
to all or any part of the Leased Premises from time to time as Tenant may deem 
desirable, provided the same are made in a workmanlike manner and utilizing good 
quality materials. Tenant shall have the right to place and install personal property, 
trade fixtures, equipment and other temporary installations in and upon the Leased 
Premises, and fasten the same to the premises. All personal property, equipment, 
machinery, trade fixtures and temporary installations, whether acquired by Tenant 
at the commencement of the Lease term or placed or installed on the Leased 
Premises by Tenant thereafter, shall remain Tenant's property free and clear of 
any claim by Landlord. Tenant shall have the right to remove the same at any time 
during the term of this Lease provided that all damage to the Leased Premises 
caused by such removal shall be repaired by Tenant at Tenant's expense. 

6. Property Taxes. 

Landlord shall pay, prior to delinquency, all general real estate taxes, if any, and 
installments of special assessments coming due during the Lease term on the 
Leased Premises.  Tenant shall reimburse landlord any such taxes of special 
assessments paid by Landlord. 

 



 

3 
 

7. Insurance. 

A. If the Leased Premises or any other part of the Building is damaged by fire or 
other casualty resulting from any act or negligence of Tenant or any of Tenant's 
agents, employees or invitees, Tenant shall be responsible for the costs of 
repair not covered by insurance. 

B. Landlord shall maintain fire and extended coverage insurance on the Building 
and the Leased Premises in such amounts as Landlord shall deem appropriate. 
Tenant shall be responsible, at its expense, for fire and extended coverage 
insurance on all of its personal property, including removable trade fixtures, 
located in the Leased Premises. 

C. Tenant and Landlord shall, each at its own expense, maintain a policy or policies 
of comprehensive general liability insurance with respect to the respective 
activities of each in the Building with the premiums thereon fully paid on or 
before due date, issued by and binding upon some insurance company 
approved by Landlord, such insurance to afford minimum protection of not less 
than $1,000,000 combined single limit coverage of bodily injury, property 
damage or combination thereof. Landlord shall be listed as an additional 
insured on Tenant's policy or policies of comprehensive general liability 
insurance, and Tenant shall provide Landlord with current Certificates of 
Insurance evidencing Tenant's compliance with this Paragraph. Tenant shall 
obtain the agreement of Tenant's insurers to notify Landlord that a policy is due 
to expire at least (10) days prior to such expiration. Landlord shall not be 
required to maintain insurance against thefts within the Leased Premises or the 
Building. 

8. Utilities. 

Tenant shall pay all charges for water, sewer, gas, electricity, telephone and other 
services and utilities used by Tenant on the Leased Premises during the term of 
this Lease unless otherwise expressly agreed in writing by Landlord. 

9. Signs. 

Following Landlord's consent, Tenant shall have the right to place on the Leased 
Premises, at locations selected by Tenant, any signs which are permitted by 
applicable zoning ordinances and private restrictions. Tenant shall repair all 
damage to the Leased Premises resulting from the removal of signs installed by 
Tenant. 

  



 

4 
 

10. Entry. 

Landlord shall have the right to enter upon the Leased Premises at reasonable 
hours to inspect the same, provided Landlord shall not thereby unreasonably 
interfere with Tenant's use of the Leased Premises. 

11. Parking. 

During the term of this Lease, Tenant shall have the exclusive use of the 
automobile parking areas, driveways, and footways. 

 

12. Quiet Possession. 

Landlord covenants and warrants that upon performance by Tenant of its 
obligations hereunder, Landlord will keep and maintain Tenant in exclusive, quiet, 
peaceable and undisturbed and uninterrupted possession of the Leased Premises 
during the term of this Lease. 

13. Governing Law. 

This Agreement shall be governed, construed and interpreted by, through and 
under the Laws of the State of Minnesota. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease as of the day and 
year first above written. 

  

City of White Bear Lake 

 

By: ____________________________ By: ____________________________ 
Jo Emerson, Mayor    Ellen Richter, City Manager 

 

Northwest Youth and Family Services 

 

By: _________________________ 
      Jerry Hromatka, President & CEO 



10.C 
 

City of White Bear Lake 
City Manager’s Office 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Ellen Richter, City Manager 
 
From:  Kara Coustry, City Clerk 
 
Date:  June 6, 2017 
 
Subject: Special Team Charities, “Fed and Wed” Event in Railroad Park 
 
 
BACKGROUND  
The City allows for special events in public spaces including City Parks.  Special event permits 
are typically approved by staff.  On occasion the City receives an application that involves the sale 
of alcohol by a licensed vendor, or as in this case, the use of a public space for a charity collection 
and wedding event. 
 
SUMMARY 
Jeff Loeks, on behalf of Special Team Charities, submitted a Special Event application for use of 
Railroad Park on September 9, 2017.  Mr. Loeks is a former member of the Fire Department who 
has organized successful charitable events at this location in the past. 
 
Working with the Food Shelf, Special Team Charities intends to collect Kid’s Pack items in a Food 
Shelf Truck parked at the site from 9:00 a.m. – 10:00 p.m.  Once the Food Truck is full (or around 
6:00 p.m.), Jeff Loeks and Racheal Haasken will get married in the Railroad Park Gazebo.  The 
wedding is not the main event, although it is intended to add excitement and will be marketed as 
part of the Kid’s Pack collection event - coined “Fed and Wed”. 
 
A Food Shelf program, each KID Pack contains 2 breakfast, 2 entrée and 4 snack items.  KID 
Packs are distributed to students in White Bear Area Schools who might otherwise go hungry over 
the weekend when food is scarce. 
 
Staff did express concern with traffic flow related to the collection effort. Mr. Loeks hosted a 
“Toilet Paper Drive” three years ago at this location, which at times did create back-ups in traffic.  
At the suggestion of the City’s Public Works and Public Safety Departments, and to address traffic 
flow as people drop items, Mr. Loeks intends to barricade the first couple of slots on Washington 
Avenue, West of 3rd Street, which will be used for folks to drop items for donation. A Food Shelf 
cube truck will be parked in a slant stall on Washington Avenue, assuming it doesn’t stick out into 



10.C 
 

traffic. If the Food Shelf cube truck is too large for the slant stall on Washington Avenue, it will 
be parked on Third Street.  
 
Use of Railroad Park would include electricity. Railroad Park is not a rented park normally, 
however, past practice has been to charge the same rate as the City charges at Podvin Park.  
Being this is a local non-profit group, the Podvin Park local non-profit rental rate is $35.00. 
 
RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 
Staff recommends Council adopt the resolution as presented. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Resolution 
 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING “FED AND WED” EVENT  
AT RAILROAD PARK 

 
 
WHEREAS, an application has been submitted by Special Teams Charities to host a “Fed 

and Wed” event at Railroad Park on September 9, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, Special Team Charities plans a Food Shelf Kid’s Pack collection event with 

the goal that once donations fill the truck, Jeff Loeks and Racheal Haasken will get married in the 
Railroad Park Gazebo; and 

 
WHEREAS, Special Team Charities would be utilizing Railroad Park, including 

electricity, from 9:00 a.m. through 10:00 p.m.; and  
 
WHEREAS, no alcohol will be sold at the event.  
 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the White Bear Lake City Council approves 
the use of Railroad Park by Special Teams Charities to host the “Fed and Wed” event on September 
9, 2017 subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. No stakes are permitted to be placed into the ground. 
 

2. No vehicles are permitted on park grounds to protect irrigation systems. 
 

3. Park rental at the same rate as Podvin Park’s local non-profit organization fee. 
 

The foregoing resolution offered by Councilmember _________ and supported by 
Councilmember __________, was declared carried on the following vote: 
 
   Ayes:    
   Nays:  
   Passed:  
         ________________________ 

Jo Emerson, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________ 
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 



City of White Bear Lake Environmental Advisory Commission 
MINUTES 
Date: April 19, 2017 Time: 6:30pm Location: WBL City Hall 

COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT 
Sheryl Bolstad, Bonnie Greenleaf, Greg Pariseau, Gary Schroeher, 
June Sinnett, Eric Wagner (chair) 

COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT None 

STAFF PRESENT Connie Taillon 

VISITORS Julie Drennen, Conservation Minnesota; Chris Greene, Resident 

NOTETAKER Connie Taillon 

   

1.  CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at 6:40pm. 

 
2.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA   

Commissioner Wagner added temporary trash fence to new business. Commissioner Greenleaf moved, 
seconded by Commissioner Pariseau, to approve the agenda as amended. Motion carried, vote 6/0. 
 

3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
a) March 15, 2017 meeting     

The commission members reviewed the March 15, 2017 draft minutes and had no changes. Commissioner 
Sinnett moved, seconded by Commissioner Pariseau, to approve the minutes of the March 15, 2017 
meeting as presented. Motion carried, vote 6/0. 

 
4.  VISITORS & PRESENTATIONS 
 Julie Drennen from Conservation Minnesota provided a legislative update. Common themes appearing in 

recent legislation include a loosening of environmental standards and limiting the oversight of the DNR and 
coordinating groups.  

 
Conservation MN sent a letter to senators in March supporting many sections of the Senate Environment and 
Natural Resources Omnibus Bill, but also expressing concerns with other proposals in the bill. Julie provided 
more detail for a couple of these concerns. A bill was recently introduced to repeal the new buffer law which 
will prevent 48,000 miles of buffer from being implemented in the state, eliminating the water quality benefits 
of these buffers. Also, a bill banning plastic bag regulations would forbid communities from being able to 
address plastic bag pollution. 
 
Conservation MN also sent a letter to Senators in March expressing concerns about the pollinator protection 
account and treated seed program being removed from the Senate Agriculture Bills. The pollinator protection 
account was designed to develop an educational campaign on the use of pesticides that harm pollinators and 
develop stewardship materials to help guide pollinator friendly practices. The broad-scale use of seeds treated 
with pesticides such as neonicotinoids is harmful to pollinators and under existing law, agricultural seeds 
treated with pesticides are not subject to state and federal regulation. A treated seed program would provide 
researchers and resources to ensure sound use of pesticides based on the best available science and 
Minnesota specific conditions.   
 

 



April 19, 2017 Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 3 
 

 Julie discussed what citizens can do to help support legislators and express concerns. She provided a letter 
writing guide that includes writing tips, a sample letter, a website link to find your local legislator, and contact 
information for Senator Wiger and Senator Chamberlain. 

   
5.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a) Environmental Resource Expo  
 Commission members have started contacting organizations. Tamarack Nature Center, VLAWMO, and 

Republic Services will be attending. Other options for electric vehicles and solar companies were also 
discussed. 

 
A commission member left at 7:55pm. 
 

b) Random Acts of Environmental Kindness  
 The commission members discussed possible ways to increase the number of coins they hand out this year. 

Ideas include handing out coins at the compost facility, in neighborhood parks, and at Marketfest. Coins 
could be given out to kids that play the fishing recycling game at the Environmental Resource Expo. To get 
the word out about the program, consider advertising in the newspaper and on Facebook. 

 
c) Commission Photo – set a date 
 The commission photo will be taken at the Environmental Resource Expo on July 27th.   

 
d) Budget Updates/Discussion 
  The commission members discussed budget items, and directed staff to purchase an additional rain barrel 

as a give-away at the Environmental Resource Expo. 
 

Staff provided an update on the holiday lights recycling program. Nine hundred pounds of holiday lights 
and eight pounds of extension cords were brought to the local metal recycling facility in Hugo, for a total of 
$93.00 in profit. This money was deposited into the EAC fund. Staff asked the commission if this money 
could be used to purchase two plastic folding tables for the Environmental Resource Expo. 

 
Commissioner Greenleaf moved, seconded by Commissioner Pariseau, to purchase two folding tables at a 
cost of $60 each using the holiday lights recycling income, with an additional $27.00 to come out of the EAC 
budget. Motion carried, vote 5/0. 

 
e) Review last month’s do-outs 

The following do-outs were discussed: staff will invite Republic Services to attend a future meeting, remove 
‘research document shredding’ from list, Lake Links meetings can be found at lakelinks.net. 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS  
a) Temporary Trash Fence 
 Commissioner Wagner observed trash in the wetland north of Buerkle Road and discussed possible options 

to alleviate the problem. One solution discussed was to install a temporary fence to catch trash. 
Commissioner Wagner will research this product and provide an update at the May meeting. 

 
b) New Do-Outs 

- Continue to invite organizations to table at the Environmental Resource Expo 

- Staff to invite Republic Services to a future meeting 

- Staff to email details about the Comp Plan Open House, Lake Links info, and SWPPP public hearing at the 
next Council Meeting. 



April 19, 2017 Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 3 
 

7.  DISCUSSION 
 Staff Updates 

-  Water Symposium Event 
The 1st annual Water Symposium will be held at South High School on June 3rd from 9am to noon. Staff 
asked if any commission members would like to volunteer to help sell rain barrels at the event from 9am 
to 11am. Paul Putzier, a hydrologist from the DNR, will be presenting from 11am to 11:30am. 

 
- Comp Plan Open House 
 The last Comprehensive Plan open house will be held at the Public Safety training room on Thursday, 

April 20th from 6pm to 7:30pm. The topic is resiliency and economic competitiveness. 
 

 Commission Member Updates 
Commissioner Greenleaf reported that money collected from her local church will be donated to help 
pollinator efforts.  

 
 May agenda 

Commission members would like to invite the new Assistant City Engineer to the May meeting.  
 

8.  ADJOURNMENT 
The next meeting will be held on May 17, 2017 at 6:30pm at City Hall. Commissioner Greenleaf moved, 
seconded by Commissioner Bolstad, to adjourn the meeting at 8:43 pm. Motion carried, vote 5/0. 



































































10.D

1. CALL TO ORDER

Bill Ganzlin called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm.

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approval of the minutes from March 16, 2017 was moved by Dan Louismet and
seconded by Don Torgerson.  Motion carried.

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Dan Louismet moved to approve the April 20, 2017 agenda, seconded by Bryan Belisle.
Motion carried.

4. COMMITTEE REPORTS

None.

5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

None.

6. NEW BUSINESS

a) Introduction of new Park Advisory Commission Member, Bryan Belisle.  Anastacia
Davis will be introduced at the next Park Advisory Commission meeting.

b) Arbor Day 2017 – Saturday, May 6, 2017 at 8:00 am

The Commission reviewed final plans for Arbor Day activities scheduled for
Saturday, May 6th at Podvin Park, Rotary Park, Lakewood Hills Park and Veterans
Park.  The White Bear Lake Lions Club and Rotary Club are the major participants
this year.

Park Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes 
APRIL 20, 2017 6:30 P.M. CITY HALL 

MEMBERS PRESENT Bill Ganzlin, Bryan Belisle, Dan Louismet, Mike Shepard, Don Torgerson, 

MEMBERS ABSENT Anastacia Davis, Joann Toth, 

STAFF PRESENT Mark Burch, Mike Natterstad 

VISITORS 

NOTE TAKER Mark Burch 



PARK ADVISORY COMMISSION MINUTES       April 20, 2017 

 

  

c) 2017 Summer Park Tour 
 
The Park Advisory Commission discussed the summer meeting schedule and which 
parks are going to be visited.  Podvin Park, McCarty Park, Matoska Park and the 
Marina were included in the schedule.  The Commission will meet at Podvin Park in 
May. 
 
2017 Meeting Locations 
 
May   Podvin Park 
June   McCarty Park 
July   Matoska Park 
August   City Marina/Boatworks (Dan’s boat) 

 
 

7. OTHER STAFF REPORTS 
 

a) Potential Clark Avenue Flagpole Memorial Restoration Project 
 

The White Bear Lake Lions Club is working on fundraising for potential summer 
construction with Veterans Day dedication. 

 
b) Sports Center Update 

 
The City Council and skating community are working toward renovation of the 
existing area.  A second sheet addition could be a future project.  

 
c) Marina Dock Replacement update 

 
The marina dock installation is nearly complete. 
 

d) Bike Sale 
 

A sale of lost bikes recovered by the Police Department is scheduled for Saturday, 
May 6th. 

 
e) Lakewood Hills Play Equipment 

 
The City and YMCA are investigating a possible joint play equipment project at 
Lakewood Hills Park. 

 
 

8. COMMISSION REPORTS 
 

None. 
 

 
9. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
None. 

 
 

10.  ADJOURNMENT 



PARK ADVISORY COMMISSION MINUTES       April 20, 2017 

 

  

 
The next meeting will be held on May 18, 2017 at 6:30 p.m. at Podvin Park. 

 
There being no further business to come before the Park Commission, the meeting was 
adjourned.  Moved by Dan Louismet and seconded by Bryan Belisle.  Motion carried. 



11.A 
 

City of White Bear Lake 
City Manager’s Office 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Mayor and City Council 
 
From:  Ellen Richter, City Manager 
 
Date:  June 8, 2017 
 
Subject: White Bear Lake Conservation District – 2018 Budget 
 
 
At its meeting on May 16th, the White Bear Lake Conservation District discussed its 2018 
operating budget, a draft of which is attached.  The budget will formally be considered at its next 
meeting in June.  A representative(s) from the WBLCD will be present at the City Council 
meeting on June 13th to discuss the proposed budget. The representatives will then share the 
Council’s comments with the board for consideration.   
 
Please find attached an email from Scott Costello, along with a draft of the 2018 budget. 











Providing food and support to those in need since 1977, the White Bear Area Emergency Food Shelf 
works toward increasing access to healthy foods for all our neighbors in the White Bear Area.

Tiger Training and Family Fitness

1884 Whitaker Street, White Bear Lake, MN 55110

www.whitebearfoodshelf.org

Food – Entertainment – Vendors

Com
munity RootsGarden Party

at the

Festivities Include: food trucks, cupcakes, a bouncy house, 
planting activities, yoga, nutritious snacks, games and more!

Join us for the 2nd Annual

Sunday, June 25th
2:00 – 5:00 pm

FREEADMISSION

An Official Manitou Days Event

BearPower


	1 Agenda June 13,2017
	TUESDAY, JUNE 13, 2017

	2 052317 Council Minutes
	TUESDAY, MAY 23, 2017
	ATTEST:

	6A1 Memo Picha
	6A1 Resolution 17-2-SHOP
	WITHIN THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE, MINNESOTA

	6A2 Memo
	6A2 Resolution 17-12-V
	WITHIN THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE, MINNESOTA

	6B1 Memo Meghan Master Salon
	6B1 Resolution 17-1-SHOP
	WITHIN THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE, MINNESOTA

	6B1b Bullis Letter 060817
	6B2 17-3-CUP Draft RESO - Revised per mtg w-Dehnerts
	WITHIN THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE, MINNESOTA

	6B2 Memo Tallys
	6B2 Resolution Denial 17-3-CUP
	6B2 Resolution of Approval - Revised per mtg w-Dehnerts
	WITHIN THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE, MINNESOTA

	6B2b Cover Attachments
	8A Memo First Read Spade Landscaping
	8A Ordinance 17-3-Z Draft B-3 ORD
	9A Memo Final Payment 16-08
	9A Resolution FNLPAY 16-08
	10A Memo Business Licenses
	10A Resolution Business License
	10B Memo NYFS Contract
	10B Resolution NYFS Lease Agreement
	10BB NFYS Agreement 2017
	10C Memo Special Teams Charities Fed and Wed
	10C Resolution for Special Teams Charities
	10D EAC April Minutes
	10D May Planning Minutes
	10D Parks Commission April Minutes 2017
	11A Memo
	11A WBL Budget and Email
	FYI Food Shelf Garden Party 062517

